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VISION

To serve investors in Pakistan’s capital

markets with diligence, integrity and

professionalism, thereby delivering
consistent superior returns and
unparalleled customer service.




MISSION STATEMENT

» Keep primary focus on investing clients’ interest

» Achieve highest standards of regulatory compliance
and good governance

» Prioritize risk management while endeavouring to

provide inflation adjusted returns on original
investment

» Enable the investing public and clients to make

AKDIML Funds a preferred part of their overall savings
and investment management strategy

» Distinguish themselves and compete on the basis of
unparalleled service quality while setting industry
standards for professionalism, transparency and
consistent leading performance

» Foster and encourage technical, professional, ethical
development of human capital to provide our people
the best opportunities and environment for their
personal growth.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY|

The Board of Directors of AKD Investment Management Limited (AKDIML), the Management Company
of AKD Opportunity Fund (AKDOF), Golden Arrow Stock Fund (GASF), AKD Index Tracker Fund (AKDITF),
AKD Cash Fund (AKDCF), AKD Aggressive Income Fund (AKDAIF), AKD Islamic Income Fund (AKDISIF) and
AKD Islamic Stock Fund (AKDISSF) is pleased to present its annual report along with the Funds’ Audited
Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2022.

FUNDS’ FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

AKD Opportunity Fund (AKDOF)
For the FY22, the return of AKD Opportunity Fund stood at -26.14% compared to the benchmark KSE-
100 Index return of -12.28%.

Golden Arrow Stock Fund (GASF)
For the FY22, the return of Golden Arrow Stock Fund stood at -19.27% compared to the benchmark KSE-
100 Index return of -12.28%.

AKD Index Tracker Fund (AKDITF)
For the FY22, the return of AKD Index Tracker Fund stood at -12.18% compared to the benchmark KSE—
100 Index return of -12.28%.

AKD Cash Fund (AKDCF)
For the FY22, the return of AKD Cash Fund stood at 9.64% compared to the benchmark return of 9.29%.

The Chief Executive under the authority granted by the Board of Directors approved total distribution
(including refund of element) of Rs. 4.75170 per unit to the unit holders during the year ended June 30,
2022.

AKD Aggressive Income Fund (AKDAIF)
For the FY22, the return of AKD Aggressive Income Fund stood at 7.23% compared to the benchmark
return of 11.31%.

The Chief Executive under the authority granted by the Board of Directors approved total distribution
(including refund of element) of Rs. 3.81178 per unit to the unit holders during the year ended June 30,
2022.

AKD Islamic Income Fund (AKDISIF)
For the FY22, the return of AKD Islamic Income Fund stood at 9.39% compared to the benchmark return
of 3.34%.

The Chief Executive under the authority granted by the Board of Directors approved total distribution
(including refund of element) of Rs. 4.57079 per unit to the unit holders during the year ended June 30,
2022.



AKD Islamic Stock Fund (AKDISSF)
For the FY22, the return of AKD Islamic Stock Fund stood at -18.72% compared to the benchmark KMI-
30 Index return of -10.25%.

MACRO PERSPECTIVE

Pakistan’s economy continued to witness robust growth as the pace of the economy exceeded
expectations of the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP), albeit coming at the expense of an elevated Current
Account Deficit (CAD) amid rising inflation fueled by a significant currency devaluation and an
unprecedented increase in international commodity prices. During FY22, the SBP remained prudent
given the inflationary pressures; hence, increasing the policy rate by 675 basis points to 13.75%.

The CAD for FY22 clocked in at USD 17.32 billion as compared to USD 2.82 billion reported during the
same period last year (SPLY) owing mainly to an increase in commodity prices, import of plants and
machineries under TERF/LTFF loan facilities provided by the SBP and import of COVID vaccines. The
Balance of Trade in Goods and Services recorded a deficit of USD 44.71 billion, adding another USD
13.56 billion as imports increased by 34% YoY to USD 84.13 billion. However, exports also posted growth
of 25% YoY to stand at USD 39.42 billion. Foreign workers continued to support the external account as
workers’ remittances surged by 6% YoY to USD 31.24 billion. The Government’s continued efforts to
attract investments from Non-Resident Pakistanis also paid off, with an impressive inflow of USD 4.61
billion through Roshan Digital Accounts (RDA) from more than 420,000 accounts till June 2022.

According to the press release, the Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) made a net revenue collection of
PKR 6.13 trillion during FY22 exceeding the target of PKR 6.10 trillion and increasing 29% over revenues
of PKR 4.74 trillion during the same period last year. We believe, record tax collection was on the back of
strong economic growth and progressive tax policies of the previous government during the fiscal year.
Notably however, tax collection growth came at a cost with major growth in revenue collection was
naturally due to an unprecedented growth in imports (customs duty, sales tax, withholding tax) in FY22.
Also, the gross collection, including refunds and rebate payments, increased by 29% from PKR 4.89
trillion during FY21 to PKR 6.31 trillion in FY22.

As per the Pakistan Bureau of Statistics (PBS), the average National Consumer Price Index (NCPI) in FY22
was recorded at 12.15% YoY as compared to 8.90% YoY recorded during FY21 primarily due to the
removal of fuel subsidies, steadfast food inflation, high transport and electricity costs. Average Core
Inflation (measured by excluding food and energy prices) clocked in at 8.12% YoY and 8.98% YoY for
Urban and Rural areas respectively, as compared to 5.98% YoY and 7.61% YoY during the SPLY.

The Large Scale Manufacturing (LSM) sector witnessed an increase of 11.7% YoY for FY22 as compared
to 11.2% YoY reported during SPLY. During the period under review, major contribution towards the
growth came from Textile, Food, Coke and Petroleum products, chemicals and Wearing Apparel.



Likewise, sectors that contributed negative growth included transport equipment, fabricated materials,
and Rubber products.

EQUITY MARKET REVIEW

The tumultuous FY22 ended with the KSE-100 index recording a decline of 12.3% YoY to settle at 41,541
points as widespread political and economic uncertainty took a heavy toll on the market. The FY22
started with rising tensions, as the US announced an end of military aggression in Afghanistan, coupled
with geopolitical turmoil triggered monetary tightening at home as the policy rate was jacked up by
650bps to 13.75% to address inflation. Investors' sentiment was further jolted following Russia’s full-
scale invasion into Ukraine which led to a further surge in international commodity prices. Positive
investor sentiment on the back of hope of political stability following the former PM Khan’s ouster was
short-lived as economic realities kicked in with an unsustainable current account deficit and depleting
foreign exchange reserves; sovereign default seemed imminent without IMF support. Without say,
averting a sovereign default through an IMF program kept confidence in check as harsh economic
decisions by the new ruling government were unavoidable. The average daily turnover decreased by
45% YoY to 291.47 million shares during FY22. Similarly, during 4QFY22, the average daily turnover
clocked in at 249.45 million shares which declined/increased by 63% YoY / 8% QoQ.

Despite very cheap equity valuations, the market participants remained bearish as the economic outlook
seemed bleak with cash constraints as immediate relief through an IMF program was arguably unlikely.
Also, the new incumbent government was expected to take unprecedented and unpopulous economic
measures including removal of oil subsidies, curtailment of imports, and imposition of heavy taxation on
corporate sectors to curb the twin deficits as a pre-requisite to discussions with the IMF.

Some of the news flow that weighed on investor sentiments included:

Soaring international energy prices following the Russia-Ukraine war.
CAD in May 2022 declined significantly by USD 1.43 billion taking the 11MFY22 CAD to USD 15.20
billion.

3. The State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) in its last monetary policy meeting raised the policy rate by 250 bps
to 13.75% in order to reduce external account pressures and improve the deteriorating inflation
outlook.

4. The provisional growth rate for the year 2021-22 was estimated at 5.97% according to Ministry of
Finance which was relatively higher than the estimates of both the IMF and World Bank.

5. Pakistan forex reserves dwindled to USD 14.21 billion on the back of debt repayments, but then
notably increased to USD 16.20 billion albeit delayed after receipt of PKR 2.3 billion from China.

6. Moody's rating agency downgraded Pakistan’s outlook to negative from stable on the back of
heightened external vulnerability risks and uncertainty about the Government's ability to secure
additional external financing.



7. The Government decided to impose additional 10% super tax on high income earning sectors
including Fertilizer, Steel, Sugar, Cement, Textiles, Banking, Oil and Gas etc. in order expand the tax
ambit to reach the IMF agreed tax collection target of PKR 7.42 trillion.

8. FBR collected revenues worth PKR 6.13 trillion during FY22 exceeding the target of PKR 6.10 trillion
and increasing 29% over revenues of PKR 4.74 trillion during same period last year.

Foreign investors continued to remain net sellers with net outflows of USD 297.51 million. Individuals,
Banks / DFls, and Corporates were major buyers with net inflows of USD 157.19 million, USD 115.18
million, and USD 111.01 million, respectively. Whereas, Mutual Funds, Brokers, and Insurance were net
sellers with net outflows of USD 128.23 million, USD 20.17 million, and USD 1.15 million, respectively.

The sectors that dragged the KSE-100 down the most included Cement (-41%), Commercial Banks (-
14%), Tobacco (-33%), Oil & Gas Exploration (-9%) and Engineering (-41%). However, some of the losses
were compensated by Miscellaneous (28%), Fertilizer (4%), Chemicals (2%), Modarabas (59%), and Real
Estate Investment Trust (23%).

In terms of valuation, the KSE-100 Index closed at a forward Price to Earnings multiple of 3.88x, which is
a 61% discount as compared to MSCI Frontier Markets P/E of 9.97x and offering a healthy dividend yield
of 9.83% still illustrating a compelling case to invest.

MONEY MARKET REVIEW

During FY22, twenty six (26) Market Treasury Bill (MTB) auctions were conducted by the State Bank of
Pakistan, where the government managed to raise PKR 17.13 trillion. Weighted average vyields of 3, 6
and 12 months MTBs were 10.16%, 10.54% and 10.53% respectively, up by 3.01%, 3.25% and 3.11% as
compared to 7.15%, 7.29% and 7.42% same period last year.

To further address the need of liquidity, SBP also conducted twelve (12) auctions of fixed rate Pakistan
Investment Bond (PIB) and was successful in raising PKR 1.84 trillion. The weighted average yield for 3, 5
and 10 year PIBs increased by 2.23%, 1.77% and 1.61% to 10.67%, 10.70% and 11.06% respectively, as
compared to 8.44%, 8.93% and 9.45% same period last year.

The Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) cognizant of external account vulnerabilities and inflationary
pressures remained prudent and announced eight (8) Monetary Policy Statements during FY22,
increasing the policy rate by 675 basis points to 13.75% to address foreseeable risks. Furthermore, SBP
also conducted 104 Open Market Operations (OMO) of different maturities and injected average
amount of PKR 1.14 trillion at an average cut off yield of 9.42% and mopped-up average amount of PKR
0.10 trillion at an average cut off yield of 7.22%.

As per the auction target calendar for August — October 2022, the SBP targets to raise PKR 5.35 trillion
by issuing 3 to 12 months tenor MTB against maturing amount of PKR 5.73 trillion. In addition, SBP also
targets to raise PKR 525 billion through 3 to 30 years tenor fixed rate PIB during the period.



STATEMENT OF CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK

(a)

(b)

(d)

(e)
(f)
(g)

The financial statements, prepared by the Management of the Company, present fairly the state of
affairs of the Fund, the result of its operations, cash flows and movement in unit holders' funds.

Proper books of account of the Funds have been maintained.

Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of the financial
statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgments.

International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in
preparation of financial statements and any departures there from have been adequately disclosed.

The system of internal control is sound in design and has effectively implemented and monitored.
There are no significant doubts upon the Funds' ability to continue as a going concern.

Statutory payments, taxes, duties, levies and charges, if any have been properly disclosed in the
financial statements.

(h) Summary of key financial data / performance tables is appended to the Financial Statements of the

Funds.

(i) The Pattern of unit holdings is appended to the Financial Statements of the Funds.

(j) The statement showing the attendance of Directors in BOD meetings and Audit Committee meetings

is as under:

‘ MEETINGS ATTENDANCE
S.No. Name of Director
27-Apr-22 | 25-Feb-22 29-Oct-21 | 29-Sep-21 Attended Leave
4 0

Mr. Abdul Karim

Mr. Imran Motiwala

Ms. Anum Dhedhi

Mr. Saim Mustafa Zuberi

Mr. Ali Wahab Siddiqui

Mr. Hasan Ahmed

Ms. Aysha Ahmed

‘ MEETINGS ATTENDANCE
SH\[eX Name of Director
26-Apr-22 | 25-Feb-22 29-Oct-21 | 28-Sep-21 Attended Leave
1

Mr. Ali Wahab Siddiqui

Mr. Hasan Ahmed

Mr. Saim Mustafa Zuberi




(k) There have been no trades in the units of the Funds carried out by the Directors, CEO, CFO, CIO,
COO, Company Secretary and their spouses and minor children of the Management Company other

than as disclosed below and in the note to the financial statements:

S.No.

Trades by

Designation

Investment
(No of Units)

Redemption
(No of Units)

AKD CASH FUND

1 Imran Motiwala CEO & Director 37,302 37,302
2 Hasan Ahmed Director 41,620 41,767
3 Sehr Imran Motiwala Spouse-CEO & Director 136,394 136,394
4 Muhammad Amin Yagoob Minor Children - COO & Company Secretary 18,062 18,062
5 Abdul Rehman Yagoob Minor Children - COO & Company Secretary 18,062 18,062
6 Ayesha Yaqoob Minor Children - COO & Company Secretary 18,062 18,062
AKD ISLAMIC INCOME FUND
1 Imran Motiwala CEO & Director 338,360 338,360
2 Muhammad Munir CFO - 854
3 Anum Dhedhi ClO & Director 82,504 -
4 Sehr Imran Motiwala Spouse-CEO & Director 447,569 447,569
5 Ameer Arif Dagha Spouse-CIO & Director 282,997 -
6 Muhammad Yagoob COO & Company Secretary 78,228 78,079
7 Ayesha Yaqoob Minor Children - COO & Company Secretary 16,388 16,388
8 Muhammad Amin Yagoob Minor Children - COO & Company Secretary 16,388 16,388
9 Abdul Rehman Yaqoob Minor Children - COO & Company Secretary 16,388 16,388
AKD ISLAMIC STOCK FUND
1 Imran Motiwala CEO & Director 189,461 187,224
2 Anum Dhedhi ClO & Director - 100,314
3 Sehr Imran Motiwala Spouse-CEO & Director 204,865 356,205
4 Muhammad Yagoob COO & Company Secretary - 10,646
AKD OPPORTUNITY FUND
1 Imran Motiwala CEO & Director 46,681 93,894
2 Hasan Ahmed Director - 21,385
3 Sehr Imran Motiwala Spouse-CEO & Director 66,087 66,087
4 Ameer Arif Dagha Spouse-CIO & Director - 137,627
5 Muhammad Yagoob COO & Company Secretary - 35,945
6 Ayesha Yaqoob Minor Children - COO & Company Secretary - 5,519
7 Muhammad Amin Yagoob Minor Children - COO & Company Secretary - 5,519
8 Abdul Rehman Yaqoob Minor Children - COO & Company Secretary - 5,519
9 Maliha Yaqoob Spouse-COO & Company Secretary - 41,548
GOLDEN ARROW STOCK FUND
1 Imran Motiwala CEO & Director 151,145 419,771
2 Hasan Ahmed Director 3,241 3,241
3 Ayesha Yaqoob Minor Children - COO & Company Secretary 67,743 101,306
4 Muhammad Amin Yagoob Minor Children - COO & Company Secretary 67,743 101,306
5 Abdul Rehman Yaqoob Minor Children - COO & Company Secretary 67,743 101,306




BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY

i. The total number of directors are seven as follows:
e a) Male: Five
e b)Female: Two

ii. The composition of the Board of Directors is as follows:

e Independent Director: Three
e Non-Executive Directors:  Five
e Executive Directors: Two
e Female directors: Two

RATING OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY

The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA) has assigned Asset Manager Rating of AM3++ (A M
three Plus Plus) to AKD Investment Management Limited (AKDIML) on June 30, 2022.

RATING OF THE FUNDS
AKD OPPORTUNITY FUND

The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA) has assigned 5-Star Performance Ranking in long
term [based on performance review of trailing 36 months (3 Year) and trailing 60 months (5 Year)] and
4-Star Performance Ranking in short term [based on performance review of trailing 12 months (1 Year)]
for the period ended December 31, 2021 to AKD Opportunity Fund (AKDOF) on February 4, 2022.

AKD CASH FUND

The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA) has assigned the stability rating of “AA+(f)” (Double
A Plus; fund stability rating) for the period ended December 31, 2021 to AKD Cash Fund (AKDCF) on
March 8, 2022.

AKD AGGRESSIVE INCOME FUND

The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA) has assigned the stability rating of “A+(f)” (Single A
Plus; fund stability rating) for the period ended December 31, 2021 to AKD Aggressive Income Fund
(AKDAIF) on March 7, 2022.

GOLDEN ARROW STOCK FUND

The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA) has assigned 5-Star Performance Ranking in long
term [based on performance review of trailing 36 months (3 Year) and trailing 60 months (5 Year)] and
short term [based on performance review of trailing 12 months (1 Year)] for the period ended December
31, 2021 to Golden Arrow Stock Fund (GASF) on February 4, 2022.



AKD ISLAMIC INCOME FUND

The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA) has assigned the stability rating of “A+(f)” (Single A
Plus; fund stability rating) for the period ended December 31, 2021 to AKD Islamic Income Fund
(AKDISIF) on March 8, 2022.

AKD ISLAMIC STOCK FUND

The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA) has assigned 3-Star Performance Ranking in long
term [based on performance review of trailing 36 months (3 Year)] and 5-Star Performance Ranking in
short term [based on performance review of trailing 12 months (1 Year)] for the period ended December
31, 2021 to AKD Islamic Stock Fund (AKDISSF) on February 4, 2022.

HOLDING COMPANY

AKD Group Holdings (Private) Limited [Formerly: Ageel Karim Dhedhi Securities (Private) Limited] is the
holding company of AKD Investment Management Limited and holds 99.97% of the outstanding
ordinary shares of the Company.

APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS

The Board re-appointed M/s Yousuf Adil, Chartered Accountants as the statutory auditors for AKD
Opportunity Fund, AKD Index Tracker Fund, AKD Cash Fund and AKD Aggressive Income Fund and M/s
Riaz Ahmad & Company, Chartered Accountants as the statutory auditor for Golden Arrow Stock Fund
for the year 2022-2023 as recommended by the Audit Committee.

The present auditors M/s Yousuf Adil, Chartered Accountants are retiring and have completed their five
years as auditors of AKD Islamic Income Fund and AKD Islamic Stock Fund. As per the requirements of
the NBFC Regulations, 2008 the auditors have to be changed this year. The Board appointed M/s Riaz
Ahmad & Company, Chartered Accountants as the statutory auditors for AKD Islamic Income Fund and
AKD Islamic Stock Fund for the year 2022-2023 as recommended by the Audit Committee.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Directors would like to take this opportunity to thank the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan, the Ministry of Finance, the State Bank of Pakistan and the Management of the Pakistan Stock
Exchange for their continued support and cooperation. The Board also appreciates the devoted
performance of the staff and officers of the AKD Investment Management Limited. The Board will also
like to thank the investors for their confidence in the Company.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

With the IMF executive board approval of the disbursement of a USD 1.1 billion tranche has in
retrospect been viewed positively to the stringent conditions linked with the program, has visibly begun



to bear fruit as the economy has been slowing down amid several measures taken by the government to
ensure fiscal discipline and much needed stability. However, the catastrophic flooding in July and August
2022 would further slowdown the economy as the agriculture sector is expected to be hit severely with
major crop losses (especially cotton) with immense damage to infrastructure and homes. As the
government scrambles to address the devastation, the fiscal loss of the floods is estimated at USD 10
billion reportedly, approximately 3.0% of GDP. The uncertainty related to the estimated loss to the
economy and the likelihood of a further downward revision of GDP growth for the current year, coupled
with heightened commodity prices internationally; will keep investor sentiment in check.

That said, the resumption of the IMF loan program is likely to pave the way to additional external
funding avenues from multilateral lenders and global funding providing much needed support to the
external account and reducing exchange rate volatility. More importantly, in the wake of the current
floods, further support from international donors and with domestic charity is indeed encouraging
which can provide liquidity for rehabilitation efforts and hence economic activity. It is expected that
during 4QCY22, Pakistan’s external debt servicing liability (interest component) stands at USD 862
million and the payment of USD 1 billion for international Sukuk in December is expected to keep the
PKR volatile. Moreover, the economic stabilization and eventual ease in international commodity prices
amid global recessionary fears is expected to contain inflationary pressures in 2HFY23.

The KSE-100 index is currently trading at an attractive PER of 4.3x compared to the regional average of
12.8x while offering a dividend yield of 8.5% vs. 2.9% offered by the region.

We remain selective for stocks that are relatively immune to higher interest rates and PKR depreciation
while the rehabilitation process will keep the cyclical sectors in limelight.

For and on behalf of the board

Imran Motiwala Abdul Karim
Chief Executive Officer Chairman

Karachi: September 28, 2022
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FUND MANAGER’S REPORT

i) Description of the Collective Investment Scheme Category and types:

Open — end Money Market Scheme
ii) Statement of Collective Investment Scheme’s Investment objective:

The investment objective of the Fund is to provide optimum return consistent with minimal risk from a
portfolio constituted of high quality short term securities / instruments, which will provide liquidity to
investors. The fund exclusively invests in highly secure (‘AA’ and above) debt instruments such that the
weighted average maturity of its assets stays below 90 days.

iiii) Explanation as to whether Collective Investment Scheme achieved its stated objective:

For the FY22, the return of AKD Cash Fund stood at 9.64% compared to benchmark return of 9.29%.

iv) Statement of benchmark (s) relevant to the Collective Investment Scheme:

70% three (3) months PKRV rate + 30% three (3) months average deposit rate of three (3) AA rated
scheduled Banks as selected by MUFAP.

v) Comparison of the Collective Investment Scheme’s performance during the period compared with the
said benchmark:

AKDCF PERFORMANCE RELATIVE TO BENCHMARK

16.00%

14.00% —
12.00% /\ //
10.00% o~ /
8.00% / \ y AKDCF

/ \ \/\/ -—
6.00% / Benchmar

4.00%

2.00%

0.00%
Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21 Dec-21 Jan-22 Feb-22 Mar-22 Apr-22 May-22 Jun-22

Monthly yield
(annualized)
AKDCF 6.12% 11.81% 6.22% | 6.89% 6.11% 9.08% 10.27% | 9.17% 9.07% 8.87% 13.00% | 14.22%

Benchmark 6.77% 6.71% 6.82% 7.17% 7.84% 9.14% 9.27% 9.55% 10.25% | 11.56% 12.98% | 13.45%

Jul-21 Aug-21 | Sep-21  Oct-21 | Nov-21 Dec-21 Jan-22 | Feb-22 = Mar-22 ‘ Apr-22 ‘ May-22 | Jun-22




vi)

vii)

viii)

Description of the strategies and policies employed during the period under review in relation to the
Collective Investment Scheme’s performance:

AKD Cash Fund is an Open — end Money Market Scheme. The returns of the fund are generated
primarily through investment in high quality short term government securities. AKDCF is fully complied
with the relevant policies and procedures as per Fund’s regulatory requirements.

Disclosure of Collective Investment Scheme’s asset allocation as the date of report and particulars of
significant changes in asset allocation:

Asset Allocation (% of Total Assets) 30-Jun-22  30-Jun-21

Cash and Cash Equivalents 78.75% 99.82%
Commercial Papers / STS 20.54% -
Other Assets including Receivables 0.71% 0.18%

Analysis of the Collective Investment Scheme’s performance:

FY22 Return 9.64%

Benchmark Return 9.29%

Changes in NAV and NAV per unit since the last reviewed period:

Net Assets Value _ NAV Per Unit

30-Jun-22 30-Jun-21 Change in Net Assets 30-Jun-22 30-Jun-21
(Rupees in 000) (Rupees)
1,273,399 418,559 204.23% 50.7461 50.6287

Disclosure on the markets that the Collective Investment Scheme has invested in including review of
the market (s) invested in and return during the period:

MACRO PERSPECTIVE

Pakistan’s economy continued to witness robust growth as the pace of the economy exceeded
expectations of the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP), albeit coming at the expense of an elevated Current
Account Deficit (CAD) amid rising inflation fueled by a significant currency devaluation and an
unprecedented increase in international commodity prices. During FY22, the SBP remained prudent
given the inflationary pressures; hence, increasing the policy rate by 675 basis points to 13.75%.

The CAD for FY22 clocked in at USD 17.32 billion as compared to USD 2.82 billion reported during the
same period last year (SPLY) owing mainly to an increase in commodity prices, import of plants and
machineries under TERF/LTFF loan facilities provided by the SBP and import of COVID vaccines. The
Balance of Trade in Goods and Services recorded a deficit of USD 44.71 billion, adding another USD
13.56 billion as imports increased by 34% YoY to USD 84.13 billion. However, exports also posted growth
of 25% YoY to stand at USD 39.42 billion. Foreign workers continued to support the external account as
workers’ remittances surged by 6% YoY to USD 31.24 billion. The Government’s continued efforts to



attract investments from Non-Resident Pakistanis also paid off, with an impressive inflow of USD 4.61
billion through Roshan Digital Accounts (RDA) from more than 420,000 accounts till June 2022.

According to the press release, the Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) made a net revenue collection of
PKR 6.13 trillion during FY22 exceeding the target of PKR 6.10 trillion and increasing 29% over revenues
of PKR 4.74 trillion during the same period last year. We believe, record tax collection was on the back of
strong economic growth and progressive tax policies of the previous government during the fiscal year.
Notably however, tax collection growth came at a cost with major growth in revenue collection was
naturally due to an unprecedented growth in imports (customs duty, sales tax, withholding tax) in FY22.
Also, the gross collection, including refunds and rebate payments, increased by 29% from PKR 4.89
trillion during FY21 to PKR 6.31 trillion in FY22.

As per the Pakistan Bureau of Statistics (PBS), the average National Consumer Price Index (NCPI) in FY22
was recorded at 12.15% YoY as compared to 8.90% YoY recorded during FY21 primarily due to the
removal of fuel subsidies, steadfast food inflation, high transport and electricity costs. Average Core
Inflation (measured by excluding food and energy prices) clocked in at 8.12% YoY and 8.98% YoY for
Urban and Rural areas respectively, as compared to 5.98% YoY and 7.61% YoY during the SPLY.

The Large Scale Manufacturing (LSM) sector witnessed an increase of 11.7% YoY for FY22 as compared
to 11.2% YoY reported during SPLY. During the period under review, major contribution towards the
growth came from Textile, Food, Coke and Petroleum products, chemicals and Wearing Apparel.
Likewise, sectors that contributed negative growth included transport equipment, fabricated materials,
and Rubber products.

MONEY MARKET REVIEW

During FY22, twenty six (26) Market Treasury Bill (MTB) auctions were conducted by the State Bank of
Pakistan, where the government managed to raise PKR 17.13 trillion. Weighted average yields of 3, 6
and 12 months MTB were 10.16%, 10.54% and 10.53% respectively, up by 3.01%, 3.25% and 3.11% as
compared to 7.15%, 7.29% and 7.42% same period last year.

To further address the need of liquidity, SBP also held twelve (12) auctions of fixed rate Pakistan
Investment Bond (PIB) and was successful in raising PKR 1.84 trillion. The weighted average yield for 3, 5
and 10 year PIBs increased by 2.23%, 1.77% and 1.61% to 10.67%, 10.70% and 11.06% respectively, as
compared to 8.44%, 8.93% and 9.45% same period last year.

The Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) cognizant of external account vulnerabilities and inflationary
pressures remained prudent and announced eight (8) Monetary Policy Statements during FY22,
increasing the policy rate by 675 basis points to 13.75% to address foreseeable risks. Furthermore, SBP
also conducted 104 Open Market Operations (OMO) of different maturities and injected average
amount of PKR 1.14 trillion at an average cut off yield of 9.42% and mopped-up average amount of PKR
0.10 trillion at an average cut off yield of 7.22%.
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As per the auction target calendar for August — October 2022, the SBP targets to raise PKR 5.35 trillion
by issuing 3 to 12 months tenor MTB against maturing amount of PKR 5.73 trillion. In addition, SBP also
targets to raise PKR 525 billion through 3 to 30 years tenor fixed rate PIB during the period.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

With the IMF executive board approval of the disbursement of a USD 1.1 billion tranche has in
retrospect been viewed positively to the stringent conditions linked with the program, has visibly begun
to bear fruit as the economy has been slowing down amid several measures taken by the government to
ensure fiscal discipline and much needed stability. However, the catastrophic flooding in July and August
22 would further slowdown the economy as the agriculture sector is expected to be hit severely with
major crop losses (especially cotton) with immense damage to infrastructure and homes. As the
government scrambles to address the devastation, the fiscal loss of the floods is estimated at USD 10
billion reportedly, approximately 3.0% of GDP. The uncertainty related to the estimated loss to the
economy and the likelihood of a further downward revision of GDP growth for the current year, coupled
with heightened commodity prices internationally; will keep investor sentiment in check.

That said, the resumption of the IMF loan program is likely to pave the way to additional external
funding avenues from multilateral lenders and global funding providing much needed support to the
external account and reducing exchange rate volatility. More importantly, in the wake of the current
floods, further support from international donors and with domestic charity is indeed encouraging
which can provide liquidity for rehabilitation efforts and hence economic activity. It is expected that
during 4QCY22, Pakistan’s external debt servicing liability (interest component) stands at USD 862
million and the payment of USD 1 billion for international Sukuk in December is expected to keep the
PKR volatile. Moreover, the economic stabilization and eventual ease in international commodity prices
amid global recessionary fears is expected to contain inflationary pressures in 2HFY23.

The KSE-100 index is currently trading at an attractive PER of 4.3x compared to the regional average of
12.8x while offering a dividend yield of 8.5% vs. 2.9% offered by the region.

We remain selective for stocks that are relatively immune to higher interest rates and PKR depreciation
while the rehabilitation process will keep the cyclical sectors in limelight.

Description and explanation of any significant changes in the state of the affairs of the Collective
Investment Scheme during the period and up till the date of Fund Manager’s report, not otherwise
disclosed in the financial statements:

There was no significant change in the state of affairs during the period under review.



xii) Break down of unit holding by size:

Range (Units) No. of Investors
0.0001 to 9,999 314
10000 to 49999 37
50,000 - 99,999 7
100,000 - 499,999 13
500,000 and above 10

381

xiii) Disclosure on unit split (if any), comprising:
There were no unit splits during the period.

Xiv) Disclosure of circumstances that materially affect any interest of unit holders:
Investments are subject to credit and market risk.

Xv) Disclosure if the Asset Management Company or its delegate, if any, receives any soft commission (i.e.
goods and services) from its broker (s) or dealers by virtue of transaction conducted by the Collective

Investment Scheme:

No soft commission has been received by the AMC from its broker or dealer by virtue of transactions
conducted by the Collective Investment Scheme.



AKD Cash Fund
Details of Pattern of Holding (Units)
As At June 30, 2022

Associated Companies
Directors and CEO

Individuals

Insurance Companies
Banks/DFls

Retirement funds

Public Limited Companies
Others

No. of Unitholders Units Held % of Total
365 20,466,137 81.56%

6 3,652,399 14.56%

1 291,362 1.16%

9 683,646 2.72%

381 25,093,544 100.00%




CENTRAL DEPOSITORY COMPANY
OF PAKISTAN LIMITED

Head Office:

CDC House, 99-B, Block ‘B’
S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahra-e-Faisal
Karachi - 74400, Pakistan.
Tel:(92-21) 111-111-500

Fax: (92-21) 34326021 - 23

URL: www.cdcpakistan.com

Email: info@cdcpak.com

TRUSTEE REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS
AKD CASH FUND

Report of the Trustee pursuant to Regulation 41(h) and Clause 9 of Schedule V of the Non-
Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008

We, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, being the Trustee of AKD Cash Fund (the
Fund) are of the opinion that AKD Investment Management Limited being the Management
Company of the Fund has in all material respects managed the Fund during the year ended June
30, 2022 in accordance with the provisions of the following:

(1) Limitations imposed on the investment powers of the Management Company under the
constitutive documents of the Fund;

(11) The pricing, issuance and redemption of units are carried out in accordance with the
requirements of the constitutive documents of the Fund; and

(ii1)  The Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulations) Rules, 2003, the
Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 and the
constitutive documents of the Fund.

oA
Badiuddin Akber

Chief Executive Officer
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

Karachi, September 30, 2022

DEPOSITORY § .
COMPANY
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the unit holders of AKD Cash Fund

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of AKD Cash Fund (the Fund), which comgprise the statement of assets and
liabilities as at June 30, 2022, and the related income statement, the statement of comprehensive income, statement
of movement in unit holders’ fund and cash flow statement for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Fund as
at June 30, 2022, and of its financial performance, cash flows and transactions for the year then ended in accordance
with accounting and reperting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Fund and Management Company in accordance
with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA
Code) as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Pakistan, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accerdance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matter
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial

statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Following is the key audit matter:

How the matter was addressed

Key audit matter
i tte in our audit

Valuation and existence of investments at fair value In response to this matter, our key audit procedures
included the foliowing:

As disclosed in note 6 to the financial statements, _ _
investments carried at fair value through profit or loss | * obtained understanding of relevant controls placed by
amounted to Rs. 331.471 million as at June 30, 2022. the Management Company applicable to the balances;

s Ensured that the investments are valued using the

These investments represent a significant item on the methodology specified in accounting policies;

statement of assets and liabilities. This is a main driver of

he Fund's performance. re s
the P s performed verification procedures on purchases and

i sales on a sample of trades made during the year
The Fund invests primarily in government securities (i.e. regarding movement of the securities;

Market Treasury Bills) and there is a risk that these
investments are incarrectly valued.
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Chartered Aceountanis

. How the matter was addressed
Key audit matter

in our audit
+ ftraced securities held by the Fund with the securities
Further, the Fund may have included investments in its appearing in the Investor Portfolio Services (IPS)
financial statements which were not owned by the Fund. account statement to verify existence; and

Considering the above factaors, the valuation and existence + any differences identified during our testll']g thaic were
of investments at fair value are significant areas during our over our acceptable threshold were Investigated
audit due to which we have considered this as a key audit | TUTther

matter.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
annual report in respect of the Fund but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon and
the information related to any other fund.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
$0, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conciude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibiiities of Management and Board of Directors of the Management Company for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
- accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and for such internal controi as the Management

determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, Management Company is responsible for assessing the Fund's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of

accounting unless Management Company either intends to liquidate the Fund or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Board of Directors of the Management Company is respensible for overseeing the Fund’s financial reporting process

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstaternent when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professiconal judgment and maintain
professicnal skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e B I

Deloicte Toushe Tohmatsu Limited
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Chartered Accountants

. Obtain an understanding of internal contrel relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Managernent Company's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by Management Company.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of Management Company’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events cr conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Fund’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to medify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Fund to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

We communicate with Beard of Directors of Management Company regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide to the Board of Directors of the Management Company with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to cormmunicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on cur independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors of the Management Company, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current pericd and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public

~ disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be

communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected te cutweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Reguiatory Requirements

In our opinion, the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Non-
Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 and Non-Banking Finance Companies and
Notified Entities Regulations, 2008.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Shafqat Ali.

1 £
‘Sffﬁ R SVIR RS i/
Chartered Accégntants -

o

Place: Karachi
Date: September 29, 2022
UDIN: AR202210186AcGEhBUSP
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AKD CASH FUND
STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AS AT JUNE 30, 2022

Note
ASSETS
Bank balances 4]
Investments 6
Profit receivable on bank deposifs and commercial paper
Deposits and other receivables 7
Total Assets
LIABILITIES
Payable to AKD Invesiment Management Limited - Management Company 8
Payable to the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee 9
Payable to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 10
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 11
Dividend payable
Total Liabilities
NET ASSETS
UNIT HOLDERS' FUND {AS PER STATEMENT ATTACHED)
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 12
NUMBER OF UNITS IN ISSUE 13
NET ASSETS VALUE PER UNIT
The annexed notes from 1 to 28 form an integral part of these financial statements.
\‘%‘ For AKD Investment Management Limited

{Management Company)

VAP (I

|

cutive Officer Chief Financial Officer

2022 2021
mmemmmemem (Rupees in '000) —--—--

681,431 2,499
595,695 421,982
8,451 85
706 675
1,286,283 425,251
1,442 889
68 28
178 88
9,328 5,687
1 |868 =
12,884 6,692
1,273,399 418,559
1,273,39% 418,559
a—ewe (Number of units) —--—
25,093,544 B,267,235
eeee (RUpPEES) =-ammm
50.7461 50.6287




AKD CASH FUND
INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

{INCOME

Capital loss on sale of investments

Net unrealised appreciation on re-measurement of investments
classified 'at fair value through profit or loss'

Income from government securities

Income from commercial paper

Income from letter of placement

Profit on bank deposits

Other income

Total income

EXPENSES

Remuneraticn of AKD Investment Management Limited - Management Company
Sinch sales fax on the remuneration of Management Company

Expenses allocated by Management Company

Remuneration of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee
Sindh sales tax on the remuneration of Trustee

Annual fee to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan

Auditor's remuneration

Brokerage and settlement charges

Fees and subscription

Printing and related cost

l.egal and professional

Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund

Total expenses

Net income for the year before taxation
Taxation

Net income for the year after taxation
Allocation of net income for the year

Net income for the year after taxation
Income already paid on units redeemed

Accounting income available for distribution

Relating io capital gains
Exeluding capital gains

Earnings per unit

The annexed notes from 1 to 28 form an integral part of these financial statements.

% For AKD [nvestment Management Limited

{Management Company}

Chi ecutive Officer Chief Financial Officer

Note

6.3

8.1
82
8.3
91
9.2
10.1
14

15

16

2022

2021

—esmemm {Rupees in "000) --——n--

(4,461) (439)
345 47
63,400 28,767
10,065 2,576
- 9
18,841 723
3,036 -
94,226 31,683
3,971 1,761
518 229
1,335 860
505 286
66 37
178 88
328 303
141 151
28 39
- 34
525 408
- 554
7,595 4,550
86,631 27.133
86,631 27,133
86,631 27,133
(14,969) (7,857)
71,662 19,276
71,662 19,276
71,662 19,276
ctor




AKD CASH FUND
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Net income for the year after taxation 86,631

Other comprehensive income for the year -

2022 2021
----—-—- {Rupges in 000}
27,133
27,133

Total comprehensive income for the year 86,631

The annexed notes from 1 to 28 form an integral pant of these financial statements.

e

For AKD Investment Management Limited

{Management Company)
/ >
% &
Chief utive Officer Chief Financial Officer or




AKO CASH FUND

STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT IN UNIT HOLDERS' FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

2022 2021
. Undistributed ' Undistributed
Capital valus income Tatal Capital value income Total
{Rupees in '‘0Q0)
MNet assets at beqinning of the year 416,123 2,436 418,559 531,170 2,050 533,220
Issus of 45,468,465 {2021; 22,643, 274) units
- Capital value 2,302,008 - 2,302,008 1,145,366 - 1,145,366
- Element of income 82,606 . 82606 40988 - 40,988
2,384,614 - 2,384,614 1,186,354 - 1,186,354
Redemption of 28,642,156 (2021: 24,917,511} units
- Capital value {1.450,114} - {1.450,114)|| (1.260.404) - (1,260,404)
- Element of loss {40,073} (14,969} {55,042) {34,612) (7,857) {42,469)
(1,490,187} (14,969} (1,505,158} (1,285,018} {7.857) (1,302,873)
Total comprehensive income for the year - 86,631 86,631 - 27,133 27,133
Final cash distribution during the year declared an
June 24, 2022 @ Rs. 475170 (2021 Rs. 3.178886) “ {68,733 {68,733) - {18,830) {18,880)
Refund of capital {42 ,518) - {42 516) {6 385} - {6,285}
Net income for the year after distribution {42,516} 17,898 {24,618) {6,385) 8,243 1,858
Met assets at end of the year 1,268,034 §,365 1,273,399 416,123 2436 418,559
Undistributed incame brought forward
- Realised incorme 2,389 1,602
- Unrealised income 47 4438
. 2,436 2,080
Accounting income available for distribution
- Relating to capital gains - -
- Excluding capital gains 71,662 18,276
71,662 19,276
Final cash distribution during the year declared on
June 24, 2022 @ Rs. 4.75170 (2021 Rs. 3.178886) (68,733) {18,890}
Undistributed income carred forward 5,365 2436
E———————  —~3
Undistributed income caried forward
- Realised income 5,020 2,389
- Unrealised income 345 47
5,365 2,436
—_———
{Rupees} {Rupees)
Net assets value per unit at beginning of the year 50.6287 50.5830
Met assets value per unit at end of the year 50.7461 50.6287

The annexed notes from 1 to 28 form an integral part of these financial statements.

N

For AKD Investment Management Limited
{Management Company}

v

Chief Financial Officer

V7 7l

Chief cutive Officer




AKD CASH FUND
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income for the year before taxation

Adjustments for non cash and other items:

Net unrealised appreciation on re-measurement of investments
classified 'at fair value through profit or loss'

Other income

Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund

{Increase) / decrease in assets

Profit receivable on bank deposits and commercial paper
Deposits and other receivables

Increase ! (decrease) in liabilities

Payable to AKD Investment Management Limited - Management Company
Payable to the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee
Payabtle to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Investments - net

Net cash generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from issuance of units
Payment on redemption of units
Distribution paid during the year

Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities

Net increase / {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalenis at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

The annexed notes from 1 to 28 form an integral part of these financial statements.

L' For AKD Investment Management Limited

(Management Company)
//?/'-’. @

Chi cutive Officer Chief Financial Officer

2022 2021
Note e (Rupees in '000) ~-—-
86,631 27,133
6.3 (345) 47
{3,036) -
- 554
83,250 27,840
(8,366) 3,249
{31) (40)
(8,397) 3,208
553 (42)
40 {7)
30 (67)
6,677 (4,424)
9,228 (4,540)
44,240 47,671
128,321 73,980
2,342,098 1,179,869
{1,505,156) (1,302,873)
{66,865) (18,890)
770,077 (141,794)
898,530 (67,814)
116,372 184,186
18 1,012,902 116,372




AKD CASH FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
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LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

AKD Cash Fund (the Fund) was established under a Trust Deed executed between AKD Investment Management
Limited (AKDIML) as the Management Company and the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) as the
Trustee. The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) authorised constitution of the Trust Deed on
August 15, 2011 in accordance with the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation} Rules, 2003
{NBFC Rules). The Initial Public Offering (IPO) of the Fund was made during the period from January 19, 2012 to
January 20, 2012. The Fund commenced operations from January 21, 2012, In accordance with the Trust Deed, the first
accounting period of the Fund commenced on the date on which the Fund property was first transferred to the Trustee
i.e. January 19, 2012,

The Management Company of the Fund has been registered as a Non-Banking Finance Company {NBFC) under the
NBFC Rules and has obtained a requisite license from SECP to undertake Asset Management services. The registered
office of the Management Company is situated at 216-217, Continental Trade Centre, Block 8, Clifton, Karachi in the
pravince of Sindh.

The Fund is an open-ended mutual fund and offers units for public subscription on a continuous basis. The units are
transferable and can also be redeemed by surrendering to the Fund. The Fund is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange
Limited.

The Fund is categorised as Money Market Fund as per circular 7 of 2009 by SECP. The principal activity of the Fund is to
make investments in government securities, treasury bills, cash and near cash instruments, money market placements,
deposits with banks, certificate of deposits, certificate of musharakas, commercial papers and reverse repos.

Title to the assets of the Fund are held in the name of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited as Trustee of the
Fund.

The Management Company has been assigned a quality rating of "AM3++" by the Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited
(PACRA) on June 30, 2022. The Fund has been given stability rating of ‘AA+{f)’ by PACRA on March 08, 2022.

The Fund is registered on August 23, 2021 with Assistant Director of Industries and Commerce (Trust Wing) Government
of Sindh under Section 12 of the Sindh Trusts Act, 2020.

BASIS OF PREFPARATION
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reparting standards as applicable
in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan compyise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)
as notified under the Companies Act, 2017,

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, along with part VIif A of the repealed
Companies Ordinance, 1984 ; and

- Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulations) rules, 2003 (The NBFC Rules), Non-Banking
Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (The NBFC Regutations) and requirements of the Trust
Ceed.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIII A of the repealed Companies
Ordinance 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations and requirements of the Trust Deed, differ from the IFRS, the
provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIII A of the repealed Companies Ordinance
1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations and requirements of the Trust Deed have been followed.

‘V\Ex
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2.3

24

3.1

3.2

The SECP through its letter no. SCD/AMCW/RS/MUFAP/2017-148 dated November 21, 2017 has deferred the
applicability of the impairment requirements of IFRS 9 for debt securities on mutual funds. Currently, the Asset
Management Companies are required o continue to follow the requirements of Circular 33 of 2012 for impairment of debt
securities.

Basis of measurement

These financiat statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except the certain investments
which are measured at fair value.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements have been presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Fund's functional and presentation
currency. The amaunts are rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees except stated ofherwise,

Significant accounting policies, accounting estimates, judgements and changes therein

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the accounting and reporting standards requires the
management to make estimates, judgements and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. It alse requires the management to exercise judgement in application of its accounting policies.
The estimates, judgements and associated assumptions are based on the historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates, Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the year in which the
estimates are revised if the revision affects only that year, or in the year of revision and future years if the revision affects
both current and future years.

Areas involving a higher degree of judgement or compiexity, or areas where estimates and assumptions are significant to
the financial statements as a whole are as follows:

(i) Classification and valuation of financial assets (Note 4.1.1 and 6);
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Note 4.1.5); and
(iiiy Provisions {Note 4.3)

AMENDMENTS TO ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
Amendments to accounting standards that are effective for the year ended June 30, 2022

The following amendments to accounting standards are effective for the year ended June 30, 2022. These amendments
are either not relevant to the Fund's operations or are noi expected to have significant impact on the Fund's financial
statements other than certain additional disclosures.

Effective from accounting
period beginning on or after

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS
7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 18). January 01, 2021

Amendment to IFRS 16 'Leases' - Covid-19 related rent concessions extended
beyond June 30, 2021 April 01, 2021

Amendments to accounting standards that are not yet effective
The following amendments are only effective for accounting periods, beginning on or after the date mentioned against
each of them. These amendments are either not relevant to the Fund's operations or are not expected to have significant

impact on the Fund's financial statements other than certain additional disclosures.

Effective from accounting
period beginning on or after

Amendments to IFRS 3 'Business Combinations' - Reference to the conceptual
framework January 01, 2022
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Effective from accounting
period heginning on or after

Amendments to IAS 18 'Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds before intended
use January 01, 2022

Amendments to IAS 37 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilites and Contingent Assets' -
Onerous Contracts — cost of fulfilling a contract January 01, 2022

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 Cycle (related to IFRS ¢, IFRS
16 and [AS 41) January 01, 2022

Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' - Classification of
liabilities as current or non-current January 01, 2023

Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' - Disclosure of
accounting pelicies January 01, 2023

Amendments to IAS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errars' - Definition of accounting estimates January 01, 2023

Amendments to 'lAS 12 Income Taxes' - deferred tax related to assets and liabilities
arising from a single transaction. January 01, 2023

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture Deferred indefinitely

Other than the aforesaid amendments, the Intemational Accounting Standards Board (IASB) has also issued the
following standards which have not been adopted lccally by the SECP:

- IFRS 1 — First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
- IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial
Financial instruments

Classification of financial assets

IFRS O contains three principal classification categoeries for financial assets:

- Amortised cost {*AC"},

- Fair value through other comprehensive income {"FVOCI{"}; and

- Fair value through prefit or loss (*FVTPL").

Financial assets at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as
FVTPL:

1) the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets fo collect contractual cash flows; and

2)  the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at FYOCI
A financial asset is measured at FVOCI only if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as FVTPL:

1) the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets; and

2} the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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On initial recognition, for an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Fund may irrevacably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value in Other Comprehensive Income {OCI), only dividend income is recognised in income
statement. This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Alf other financial assets are classified at FVTPL (for example: equity held for trading and debt securities not classified
either AC or FVOCI),

In addition, on initial recognition, the Fund may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the
requirernent to measure at amortized cost or at FYOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets are not rectassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the period after the Fund changes its
business model for managing financial assets.

Recognition and initial measurement of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Fund's statement of assets and liabilities when the Fund
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or foss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable ta the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised immediately in the income statement.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial agsets at amortised cost
Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured ai amortized cost. Amortised cost is calculated using the

effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument ta the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Financial assets at FVOCI

All financial assets at FVYOCI are subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses arising due to changes in
fair value recognised in other comprehensive income.

Far debt instruments classified as financial assets at FVQCI, the amounts already recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to income statement on derecognition of financial assets. This treatment is in contrast to equity
instruments classified as financial assets at FVOCI, where there is no reclassification on derecognition.

Financial assets at FVTPL

All financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair vaiue, with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recorded in the income statement.

Fair value measurement principles and provision
The fair vaiue of financial instruments is determined as follows:
Basis of valuation of debt securities {other than government securities)

The fair value of debi securities (other than government securities} is based on the value determined and annaunced by
Mutua! Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAP} in accordance with the criteria laid down in Circular No. 1 of 2009 and
Circular No. 33 of 2012 issued by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). In the determination of the
rates, MUFAP takes into account the holding pattern of these securities and categorizes them as traded, thinly traded
and non-traded securities. The aforementioned circular also specifies the valuation process fo be followed for each
category as well as the criteria for the provisioning of non performing debt securities,
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4.1.9

Basis of valuation of government securities

The govemment securities not listed on stock exchange and traded in the interbank market are valued at the average
rates quoted on a widely used electranic quotation system (PKRV) rates which are based on the remaining tenor of the
security.

Impairment

Under expected credit loss (ECL) madei of IFRS 9, the Fund recognises loss allowances on financial assets other than
debt securities. The Fund measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, except for the following, which
are measured at 12-month ECL:

-  Financial assets that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

- Other financial assets for which credit risk {i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the assef) has
not increased significantly since initial recognition

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and
when estimating ECL, the Fund considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without
undue cast or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Fund's
historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

As disclosed in note 2,1.2 of these financial statements, the Fund follows requirements of circular 33 of 2012 (the
circular) for impairment of debt securities. Under the circular, provision for non performing debt securities is made on the
basis of time based criteria as prescribed under the circular. Impairment loss recognised on debt securities can be
reversed through the income statement.

As allowed under circular no. 33 of 2012 dated Cctaber 24, 2012 issued by the SECP, the Management Company may
also make provision against debt securities over and above minimum provision requirement prescribed in aforesaid
circular, in accordance with the provisioning policy approved by the Board of Directors and disseminated by the
Management Company on its website,

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL, The
effective interest method is a methad of caleulating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense aver the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments {including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, fransaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (whete approgriate) a shorter period, to
the amortised cost of a financial liability.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or where
the entity has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

A financial liability is derecognised when ihe obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.
Regular way contracts

All purchases and sales of securities that require delivery within the time frame established by regulation or market
convention are recognised at the trade date. Trade date is the date on which the Fund commits to purchase or sell
assets.

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of assets and liabilities
when there is a legaily enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and setile the liabilities simultaneousty.




4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of bank balances and short term highly liquid investments with original maturity of
three months or less, which are readily convertible o known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Fund has a present, legal ar constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obiigation and a reliable
estimate of the amount of obligation can be made. Provisions, if any, are regularly reviewed and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimate.

Taxation

The income of the Fund is exempt fram income tax under clause 99 of Part { of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001, subject to the condition that not less than ninety percent of its accounting income for the year, as
reduced by capital gains, whether realised or unrealised, is distributed in cash to the unit holders.

The Fund is also exempt from the provisions of Section 113 {(Minimum Tax) under clause 11A of Part IV of the Second
Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

The Fund does not account for deferred tax in these financial statements as the Fund intends to continue availing the tax
exemption in future years by distributing in cash not less than ninety percent of its accounting income for the year as
reduced by capital gains, whether realised or unrealised, to its unit holders.

Issue and redemption of units

Units issued are recorded at the offer price, determined by the Management Company for the applications received by
the distributors during business hours on that date. The offer price represents the net asset value per unit as of the close
of the business day plus the allowable sales load and any provisicn for duties and charges, if applicable. The sales load
is payable to investment facilitators, distributors and the Management Company.

Units redeemed are recorded at the redemption price, applicable to units for which the distibutors receive redemption
applications during business hours of that day. The redemption price represents the net asset value per unit as of the
close of the business day less any back-end load, any duties, taxes, and charges on redemption, if applicable.

Element of income / loss included in prices of units issued less those in units redeemed

Element of income represents the difference befween net assets value per unit on the issuance or redemption date, as
the case may be, of units and the net assets vaiue per unit at the beginning of the relevant accounting period. Further,
the element of income is a transaction of capital nature and the receipt and payment of element of income is taken to unit
holders' fund. However, to maintain the same ex-dividend net asset value of all units outstanding on the accounting date,
net element of income contributed on issue of units lying in unit holders fund is refunded on units in the same propottion
as dividend bears to accounting income available for distribution.

Dividend distribution and appropriations

Dividend distributions and appropriations are recorded in the period in which these are approved by the Board of
Directors of the Management Company. Based an the Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan's (MUFAP) guidelines duly
consented by the SECP, distribution for the year is deemed to comprise of the portion of income already paid on units
redeemed during the year and cash distribution for the year.

Regulation 63 of the NBFC Regulations requires the Fund to distribute at feast 90% of the net accounting income other
than capital gains to the unit holders.

Distributions declared subsequent to the year end reporting date are considered as non-adjusting events and are
recognised in the financial statements of the period in which such distributions are declared and appraved by the Board
of Directors of the Management Company.
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4.8

4.9

4.10

8.1

Net assets value per unit

The net asset value (NAV) per unit as disclosed In the statement of assets and liabilities is calculated by dividing the net
assets of the Fund by the number of units in issue at the reporting date.

Revenue recognition

- Capital gain or loss on sale of investments is accounted for in the income statement on the date at which the sale
transaction takes place.

- Profit on bank deposits and investment in debt securities are recognised on a time proportionate basis using the
effective interest method.

- Unrealised gain / loss arising on remeasurement of investments classified as 'fair value through profit or loss' is
included in the income statement in the period in which it arises.

Expenses

All expenses including NAV based expenses {namely management fee, trustee fee, annual fee payable to the SECP,
and selling and marketing expense) are recognised in the income statement on an accrual basis.

2022 2021
Note ———s== (Rupeas in '000} -——eemmn
BANK BALANCES
Saving accounts 51 681,421 2,489
Current accounts | 10 10
681,431 2,499

Mark-up rates on these accounts ranges from 12.25% to 15% per annum (2021 5.5% per annum).

2022 2021
Note — ~—-e -- {Rupees in '000) -—==m=r=
INVESTMENTS
At fair value through profit or loss
Gavernment securities - Market treasury bills 6.1 331,471 421,992

At amortised cost
Commercial paper / short term sukuk (ST3) 6.2 264,224 -

(\/B)" 595,695 421,992




6.

1
8.2

Govemment securities - Market treasury bills

Face valua Balance as at Juna 30, 2022 M:‘:‘:.;::;z: a
Issue date Tenor Purchased Sald f
At July 01, 2021 | during the d’:;:‘:::a A;;;‘:;Ze C::'ly::g "::m:t A%'::::;::I Inyestmants | Net assets
year year
{Rupeas in '000) (%)
February 11, 2021 & Months 18,000 - 16,000 - - - - B -
Febryary 11, 2021 & Manths 17,000 - 17.000 - - - - - -
March 25, 2021 8 Manths 280,000 - 280,000 - - - - - -
May 6, 2021 3 Months 25,000 - 25,000 - - - - - -
May 20, 2021 3 Months 1,000 - 8,600 - - - - - -
June 3, 2021 3 Menths 35,000 - 35,000 - - - - - -
June 17, 2021 3 Months 8,000 - 8,000 - - - - - -
June 3, 2021 3 Months 29,000 - 39,000 - - - - - -
July 15, 2021 3 Months - 85000 55,000 - . - B - -
July 15, 2021 3 Months - 15,000 15,000 - - - - - -
July 29, 2021 3 Moniths - 15000 15,000 - . - - . -
July 29, 2021 3 Menths - 25,000 25,000 - - - - - -
May 8, 2021 3 Manths . 180,000 180,000 . - . - - .
August 12, 2021 3 Months - 45000 46,000 - - - - - -
August 12, 2021 3 Manths - 2,000 2,000 - - - - - -
August 26, 2021 3 Months - 110,000 410,000 - - - . - . -
Saptamber 23, 2021 3 Months - 235,000 235000 . . . - . -
Octobar 21, 2021 3 Months - 35,000 35,000 - - - - - -
Movember 4, 2021 3 Manths - 230,000 230,000 - - - - - -
Navembar 4, 2021 3 Months - 33,000 33,000 - - - - - -
September 23, 2021 3 Monlhs - 385000 385,000 - - - - - -
Seplember 23, 2021 3 Months - 130,000 130,000 - - - - - -
Dacamber 2, 2024 3 Months - 380,000 360,000 . - - . - -
Dacamber 31, 2020 3 Months - 900,800 S04, 000 - - - - - -
January 27, 2022 3 Menths. - 20,600 20,000 - - - - - -
February 10, 2022 3 Months - 35,000 35,000 - - - - - -
January 13, 2022 3 Months - 85900 685,500 - - - - - -
Febuary 24, 2022 2 Months - 30,000 30,000 - . - . . .
March 10; 2022 A Manths - 65,000 65,000 - - - - - -
March 24, 2022 A danths - 820,000 220,000 - - - - - -
March 24, 2022 3 Months - 84,000 88,000 - - - - - -
Aprdl 7, 2022 3 Manths - 86,000 68,000 - - - - - -
January 27, 2022 3 Months - 500,000 500,000 - - - - - -
February 10, 2022 3 Menths - 520,000 520,000 - - - - - -
April 28, 2022 3 Months - 0400 300,000 - - - - - -
Aprd 28, 2022 3 Menths - 300,000 300,000 - - - - - -
April 28, 2022 3 Months - 20,000 $0.000 - - - - - -
June 2, 2022 3 Manths - 70,000 - 70,000 88,471 £8,537 ar 11.54 538
June 3, 2022 A Months - 36,000 15,000 20,000 19.567 14,582 15 328 1.54
June 16, 2022 3 Months - 175,000 - 175,000 170,128 170,348 220 28.60 1338
June 16, 2022 3 Months - 75,000 - 75,000 72,563 73.008 43 12.26 573
Investrnent as at June 30, 2022 3Nz 34T M5
Investment as at June 30, 2021 421845 42,892 47
Commercial papar f ghort term sukok {STS)
Camying valug as a
Rata of Faca value Carrylng :l'h" . 13 of
Investes Company retum Issus date Maturity date As at July |Purchased Sold ! As at value as at Rating
per - o, during the maturad June 30, June 30, Investments | Nt as=ats
Annum during tha 2022
2022 yaur ear 2022
T3] {Rupeas In '000 ) (% —
Power Generation and Distribution .
K- Blectric Limited 14 Aprl 12, 2022 Ooiober 12, 2022 - 110,000 - 119,000 110,000 Als 18.47 B84
k- Electric [imited 868  Oclober 7, 2021 Apiil 7, 2022 - a5,000 35,000 - - - - -
K- Electric Limited B.01  August 26, 2021 February 22, 2022 - 30,000 30,000 - - - - -
China Power Hub Generation
Campany (PyL) Limiied 1405  Aprl 12,2022  October 10, 2022 - 112,224 - 112,224 112,224 Al+ 1864 a.81
Lucky Elecide Power Cormpany Limitad 14.23 Apnl 14, 2022 October 14, 2022 - 158,000 - 15,000 15,000 Al+ 2.52 118
Lucky Electic Power Company Limited 18,83  June 15, 2022 Decomber 15, 2022 - 27000 - 27000 27,000 Alr 453 212
Investment as at June 30, 2022 o622 284224

Investrnent as at June 30, 2021

—_————————r———rm




6.3

7.1

8.1

B.2

8.3

8.4

2022 2021
Note =-==e-— {Rupees in '000} ——-

Net unrealised appreciation on re-measurement of
investments classified ‘at fair value through profit or loss'
Market value of investments 6.1 331,471 421,992
Carrying amount of investments 6.1 (331,126) (421,945)

345 47
DEFOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Security deposits with Central Depository

Company of Pakistan Limited 100 100

Advance tax 71 606 575

706 875

As per clause 47(B) of part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, payments made to collective
investment schemes (CISs) are exempt from withholding tax under section 151 and 150. However, uptil year ended June
30, 2021, withholding tax on profit on debt paid to the Fund was deducted by various withholding agents based on the
interpretation issued by FBR vide letter C. na. 1(43) DG (WHT)/2008-VOL.11-66417-R dated May 12, 2015 which requires
every withholding agent to withhold income tax at applicable rates in case a valid exemption certificate under section
158{1) issued by the concerned Commissioner of Inland Revenue (CIR) is not produced before him by the withholder.

2022 2021
Note s==m-~ (Rupees in '000) —--—-
PAYABLE TO AKD INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT LIMITED -
MANAGEMENT COMPANY

Management fee 8.1 541 145
Sindh sales tax on management fee 8.2 70 17
Expenses allocated by the Management Company 8.3 162 58
Federal exercise duty an management fee 8.4 669 669

1,442 88g

As per the offering document the Management Company has charged remuneration at the foflowing rates per anuum of
the average net assets of the Fund. The remunration is paid to the management an a monthly basis in arrears.

Net Asset of the Fund Remuneration Rate {Per annum)
Up to Rupees 1 billion 0.40%
Rupees 1 billion - Rupees 1.5 billion 0.50%
Over Rupees 1.5 billion 1.25%

Sindh sales tax on services at the rate of 13% (2021: 13%) on gross value of management fee is charged under the
provisions of Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011.

The Management Company has charged expenses at the rate of 0.15% (2021: 0.1%) per annum of the average annual
net assets of the Fund. The remuneration is paid to the Management Company on a monthly basis in arrears.

As per the requirements of the Finance Act 2013, Federal Excise Duty (FED) at the rate of 16% on the remuneration of
the Management Company was applied with effect from June 13, 2013. The Management Company is of the view that
since the remuneration is already subject to the provincial sales tax, further levy of FED results in double taxation, which
does not appear to be the spirit of the law. The matter was collectively taken up by the Management Company jointly
with cther Asset Management Companies and Trustees of respective Collective investment Schemes (CISs), through a
Constitutional Petition filed in the Honorable Sindh High Court (SHC) during September 2013, In this respect, the SHC
had issued a stay order against the recovery of FED due to which the Fund has not made any payments for FED since
June 13, 2013,
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9.2

10.

101
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111

On June 30, 2018, SHC had passed a Judgment that after 18th amendment in the Constitution of Pakistan, the
Provinces alone have the legislative power to levy a tax on rendering or providing services, therefore, chargeability and
collection of FED after July 01,2011 is ultra vires to the Constitution of Pakistan. On September 23, 2016, the Federal
Board of Revenue {FBR) filed an appeal in the Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP) against above judgement, which is
pending adjudication. Management Company, as a matter aof abundant caution, has maintained full provision for FED
aggregating to Rs. 0,669 millien (2021: Rs. 0.669 million) until the matter is resolved. Had the provision not been
retained, the net asset value per unit of the Fund as at June 30, 2022 would have been higher by Re. 0.027 per unit
{2021: Re. 0.081 per unit).

Through Finance Act, 2018, FED on services rendered by Non-Banking Financial institutions (NBFis} including Asset
Management Companies, which are already subject to provincial sales tax, has been withdrawn.

Therefore, provision for FED has not been recorded in these financial statements from July 01, 2016 onwards.

2022 2021
Note =~ === {Rupees in '000} ~---—-
PAYABLE TO THE CENTRAL DEPQSITORY COMPANY OF -
PAKISTAN LIMITED - TRUSTEE

Trustee fee .. 8.9 59 24
Sindh sales tax on trustee fee ' 9.2 8 3
CBS charges 1 1

68 28

The Trustee is entitlied to a remuneration to be paid monthly for services rendered to the Fund under the provisions of
the Trust Deed as per the tariff specified therein, based on the daily net assets of the Fund. The remuneration is paid o
the Trustee at 0.055% (2021: 0.065%) of net assets on monthly basis in arrears.

Sindh sales tax on services at the rate of 13% (2021: 13%) on gross value of frustee fee under the provisions of Sindh
Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011.

2022 2021
Note == {Rupees in '000) ---—--
PAYABLE TO SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE
COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN
Annual fee to SECP 10.1 178 83

Under the provisions of the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Naotified Entities Regulations, 2008 all Collective
Investment Schemes are required o pay an annual fee, to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan, an
amount equal to 0.02% (2021: 0.02%) of the average annual net assets of the scheme,

2022 2021
Note -—- (Rupees in '000) —--mmm-

ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES
Auditor's remuneration 248 229
Printing charges payable 150 150
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund {SWWF) 11.1 - 3,036
Witholding tax payable 8,896 2,242
Brokerage payable 1 10
Zakat payable ' 35 19
Qthers - 1

9,328 5,687

Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund {SWWF)

During the year, Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) through its letter dated August 12, 2021, has clarified the legal status of
applicability of Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund (SWWF}.
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As per the said letter, having reference no. SRE/TP/70/2013/8772, the Asset Management Companies (AMC) are
covered under the term “financial institutions” as per the section 2(G)(V) of the SWWF Act, 2014 and are therefore,
subject to SWWF charge, whereas, the Mutual Funds managed by those AMCs do nat qualify as * Financial Institutions /
Industsial Establishments™ as per the SWWF Act, 2014 and are therefore, not liable to pay SWWF contributions.

The development was discussed at MUFAP level and has also been taken up with the SECP and all the AMCs, in
consultation with SECP, have reversed the cumulative provision for SWWF recognised in the financial statements of the
Funds.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

There were no contingencies and commitments as at June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021.

. 2022 2021
NUMBER OF UNITS IN ISSUE ~{Number of Unitg}---
QOpening units in issue 8,267,235 10,541,472
Units issued during the year 45,468,465 22 843,274
Less: Units redeemed during the year {28,642,156) (24,917,511}
Total units in issue at the end of the year 25,083,544 8,267,235
2022 2021
remanann (Rupees in '000) ----—--
AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION *
Annual audit fee ' 162 147
Half year fee €9 63
Income certification 30 30
Other certification 20 20
Out of pocket 23 21
304 281
Sindh sales tax : : 24 22
328 303

TAXATION

The Fund's income is exempt from Income Tax as per clause {99} of part | of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 subject to the condition that at least 90% of the accounting income for the year as reduced by capital
gains whether realised or unrealised is distributed to the unit holders in cash. The Fund is also exempt from the
pravisions of section 113 (Minimum Tax) under clause 11A of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001. During the year, Management Company has distributed cash dividend of at least 80% of the
aforementioned accounting income to the unit holders. Accordingly, no provision for taxation has been recognised in
these financial statements.

EARNINGS PER UNIT

Earnings per unit {EPU) has not been disclosed as in the opinion of the management, determination of weighted average
units for calculating EPU is not practicable.

TOTAL EXPENSE RATIO
The Total Expense Ratio of the Fund is 0.85% {2021: 1.03%)} which includes 0.08% {2021: 0.22%) representing

government levies on the Fund such as provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund, sales taxes, annual fee to the SECP.
This ratio is within the maximum (imit of 2.0% prescribed under the NBFC Regulations.
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Note 2022 2021
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ~—-- (Rupees in '000) ---—-
Bank balances 5 681,431 2,499
Market treasury bills (with maturity of three months or less) 6.1 331,471 113,873
1,012,902 116,372

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES / CONNECTED PERSONS

Related parties / connected persons of the Fund include the Management Company, other collective investment
schemes managed by the Management Company, the Trustee, directors and key management personnel, other
associated undertakings and unit holders holding mere than 10% units of the Fund.

Remuneration payable to the Management Company and the Trustee is determined in accordance with the provision of
the NBFC Regulations, 2008 and Constitutive documents of the Fund.

The transactions with connected persons / related parties are in the normal course of business, and are carried out on
agreed terms at contracted rates.

Details of transactions and balances at pericd end with related parties / connected persans, other than those which have
been disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, are as follows:

19.1 Transactions during the year with connected persons / related parties

2022 2021
~e- {RUpees in '000) ---mmmx-

AKD Investment Management Limited - Management Company

Issue of Nil Units {2021: 21,879) units - 1,120
Redemption of Nil Units (2021: 21,879) units - 1,140
Management remuneraticn 3,971 1,761
Sindh sales tax on management remurieration 518 228
Expenses allocated by management company 1,335 660

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee

Trustee remuneration 505 286
CDS charges 6 6
Sindh sales tax on trustee remuneration and CDS Charges 66 38
Security deposit paid - 100

Imran Motiwala - CEO & Director of the Management Company

Issue of 37,302 {2021: Nil) units 1,946 -
Redemption of 37,302 (2021: Nil) units 1,985 -

Sehr Imran Motiwala - Spouse of the CEO & Director of the Management Company

Issue of 136,394 (2021: Nil} units 7,114 -
Redemption of 136,394 (2021: Nil) units 7,143 .

Hasan Ahmed - Director of the Management Company

Issue of 41,620 (2021: 7) units 2,229 1
Redemption of 41,766 (2021: Nil) units 2,293 -
Dividend paid - 1

Company Secretary and Chief Operating Officer of the Management Company
{with spouse and minor children)

Issue of 54,187 (2021: Nil) units 2,910 -
Redemption of 54,187 (2021: Nil} units 2,928 -

i
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Unit holders holding 10% or more of the units in issue
Dinaz Cassim

Issue of 5,199,293 (2021: 51,028 ) units
Redemption of 1,256,122 (2021: 681,137} units
Dividend paid

Refund of capital 168,082 (2021: Nil} units

Durain Cassim

Issue of 5,442,664 {2021: 71,951) units
Redemption of 858,256 (2021: 2,486,716) units
Dividend paid

Refund of capital 186,761 (2021: 157,771) units
Bank Alfalah Ltd. Employees Provident Fund**

Issue of Nil (2021: 2,626,792) units
Dividend paid
Refund of capital Nil (2021: 82,456 ) units

Balances outstanding at year end:

AKD investment Management Limited - Management Company

Management remuneration payable

Federal excise duty payable on management remuneration
Sindh Sales tax payable cn management remuneration
Payable against allocated expenses

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee

Trustee remuneration payable

CDS charges payable

Sindh Sales Tax payable on trustee remuneration
Deposit with CDC

Hasan Ahmed - Director of the Management Company

Units held Nil {2021: 146)

Unit helders holding 10% or more of the units in issue
Dinaz Cassim

Units held 5,117,533 (2021: 1,006,280) units

Durain Cassim

Units held 6,190,043 (2021: 1,418,874) units

Bank AlFalah Ltd. Employees Provident Fund**
Units held 2,709,248 (2021: 2,709,248)

* Prior period connected party, current figures not shown
** Current period connected party, prior period figures not shown

T

2022

271,815
65,000
13,900

8,510

285,012
45,000
17,661

9,456

12,874

541
669

10
162

59

100

259,695

314,120

137,484

2021

(Rupees in 000} +--—--

2,581
356,000
3,037

3,639
128,000
4,282

137,041
4,179
4171

145
669
17
58

24

100

50,947

71,836

137,166




20.

21.

211

2111

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
All the financial assets and liabilities carried on the statement of assets and liabilities are categorised as follows:

Financial assets

2022 2021
At fair value thorugh profit or loss ~w— (Rupees in '000) --——-
Investments - Government securities {Treasury bills) 331,471 421,992
At amortised cost
Bank balances 681,43 2,499
Investments in commercial paper 264,224 -
Profit receivable on bank deposits and commercial paper 8,451 85
Deposits 100 100
1,285,677 424 676
Financial liabilities
At amortised cost
Payable to AKD Investment Management Limited - Management Company 1,442 889
Payable to the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee 68 28
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 397 380
Dividend payable 1,868 -
3,775 1,307

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Fund's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Fund's financial performance.

The Fund's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks; market risk (inciuding currency risk, profit rate and other price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. Risks of the Fund are being managed by the Management Company in accordance with
the approved policies of the investment committee which provides broad guidelines for management of above mentioned
risks. The Board of Directors of Management Company has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Fund's risk management framework.

The Fund's financial assets primarily comprise of balances with banks, investment in government securifies and
commercial papers classified at 'fair value through profit or loss' and 'at amortised cost. The Fund also has profit
receivable on bank deposits and commercial paper and deposits. The Fund's principal financial liabilities include
remuneration payable to the Management Company, the Trustee and accrued and other lizbilities.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument wili fluctuate because of changes in
market prices.

The Management Company manages market risk by monitoring exposure in marketable securities by following the internal
risk management policies and investment guidefines approved by the investment Committee of the Fund and the
regulations laid down by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

Market risk comprises of three types of risk; currency risk, interest rate risk and ather price risk.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in

foreign exchange rates. The Fund, at present is not exposed to currency risk as its operations are geographically restricted
to Pakistan and all transactions are carried out in Pak Rupees.

Vi
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21.1.3 Price Risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instruments will fluctuate as a result of changes in
market prices (other than thase arising from interest rate risk ot currency risk} whether those changes are caused by
factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting ali similar financial instruments traded
in the market. Currently, the Fund does not hoid any security which exposes the Fund to price risk.

Credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk of loss if the counterparties fail o perform as contracted. The Fund's credit risk mainly arises
from bank balances, deposits, profit receivable on bank deposits and investment in commercial papers.

Management of credit risk

The Fund keeps deposits and performs transactions with reputed financial institutions with reasonably high credit ratings.
The Fund has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties as a means of mitigating the risk of financial
loss from defaults. This information is supplied by independent rating agencies, where available, and if not availabie, the
Fund uses other publicly available financial infarmation and its own trading records to rate its major customers. The Fund's
exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparfies are continuously menitored and the aggregate value of transactions
conciuded is spread amongst approved counterparties.

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed in accordance with the Fund's policy.
investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credif limits assigned to each
counterparty. Counterparty credit limits are approved by the Board of Directors. The limits are set to minimize the
cancentration of risk and therefore mitigate financial loss through potential counterparty failure.

The Fund's maximum exposure to credit 7isk is the carrying amounts of following financial assets.

2022 2021
Balance as
er Balance as per
P Maximum  statement of Maximum
statement of
exposure assets and expasure
assets and .
L liabilities
liabilities
{Rupees in '000)
Bank balances 681,431 681,431 2,499 2,499
Profit receivable on bank deposits and commercial paper 8,451 8,451 85 85
Deposit 100 100 100 100
[nvestment in commercial papers 264,224 264,224 - -
954,206 954,206 2,584 2,884

The analysis below summaries the credit rating quality of the Fund's financial assets with banks as at June 30, 2022,

2022 2021
Rating Agency Ru%eazs in % Rupees in ‘000 %
Bank balances by rating category
AA+ A1+ PACRA VIS 2,328 0.34 2,305 92 26
AAT AT+ PACRA VIS 678,784 99.61 83 3.34
AAA T AT+ PACRA / VIS 318 0.05 110 4.40

(V% 681,431 100 2,499 100
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2022 2021
M . 0, o,
Rating Agency Rulpees in o Rupees in '000 /3
000
Profit receivable on bank deposits and
commercial paper
AA+ [ Al+ PACRA 8,451 100% 85 100%

Above rafings are on the basis of available ratings assigned by PACRA / VIS Rating Company Limited as of June 30,
2022,

Balance with banks is assessed to have low credit risk of default since the banks are highly regulated by the State Bank of
Pakistan. Accordingly, the Fund estimaies that loss aflowance on balance with banks at the end of the reporting period at
an amount equal to 12 month Expected Credit Loss (ECL). Nane of the balance with bank at the end of the reporting periad
is past due, and taking into account the historical default experience and the current credit ratings of the bank, the Fund
have assessed that there is no impairment, and hence have not recorded any loss allowance on this balance.

2022 2021
. . [ -}
Rating Agency Ru?ees in %o Rupees in ‘000 %
000
Commercial Papers
Al+ PACRA 264,224 100% - -

Abave ratings are on the basis of avaifable ratings assigned by PACRA as of June 30, 2022.
Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of financial instruments or contracts are entered into with the same
counterparty, ar where a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, ar activities in the same
geographic regicn, or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be
similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. The Fund's transactions are entered into with
diverse credit worthy counterparties thereby mitigating any significant concentration of credit risk.

Settlement risk

The Fund’s activities may give rise to risk at the time of settlement of transactions. Settlement risk is the risk of loss due to
the failure of an entity to honour its obligations to deliver cash, securities or other assets as contractually agreed.

For the vast majority of transactions the Fund mitigates this risk by conducting settlements through 2 broker to ensure that
a trade is setiled only when bath parties have fulfilled their contractual settlement abligations.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations arising from its financial liabilities that
are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset or such obligations will have to be setfled in a manner
disadvantageous to the Fund.

The Fund is exposed to daily cash redemptions, if any, at the option of unit holders. The Fund approach to managing
liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that the Fund will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due
under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Fund's
reputation. Its policy is therefore to invest the majority of its assets in investments that are traded in an active market and
can be readily disposed and are considered readily realisable.

In order to manage the Fund's overall liquidity, the Fund also has the ability to withhold daily redemption requests in excess
of ten percent of the units in issue and such requests would be treated as redemption requests qualifying for being
processed on the next business day. Such procedure would continue untit the outstanding redemption requests come
down 1o a level below ten percent of the units then in issue. However, no such instances were witnessed by the Fund
during the current year .

The table below analyses the Fund's financial iabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at
the reporting date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
0{%
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21.1.2 Yield / interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flaws of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market
interest rates. As of June 30, 2022, the Fund is exposed to such risk on its batances held with bank kalances and investments in
government securities and commercial paper. The Investment Committee of the Fund reviews the portfolio of the Fund on a regular basis
to ensure that the risk is managed within the acceptable limits.

As of June 30, 2022, details of Fund's profit bearing financial instruments were as foliows:

2022 2021
— {Rupees in "000) —
Variable rate Instruments {financlal asset)

Balances with banks 681,421 2,489

Fixed rate instruments {financial assets)

Government securities - Market treasury bills 3,47 421,992
Commercial paper 264,224 -

595,695 421,882

a) Sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

At the reporting date the Fund has balances in savings bank accounts on which interest ranges from 7.75% - 11.25% that could
expose the Fund to cash flow interest rate risk, The net income for the year would have increased / decreased by Rs. 6.814 million
{2021: Rs. 0.025 million) had the interest rates on saving accounts with the banks increased / decreased by 100 basis points. The
analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant.

b) Sensitivity analysis for fixed rate Instruments
Fund is exposed to fair value interest rate risk for investrnent in government securities. In case of 100 basis points increase / decrease

in interesi rates on June 30, 2022, with all other variables held constant, the net income far the year and the net assels would have
been lower / higher by Rs. 3.31 million {2021: Rs.4.22 million).

Exposure to interest rate risk and maturity

Interest rate sensitivity position for on balance sheet financial instruments is based on the earlier of contractual repricing or maturity date
and far off-balance sheet instruments is based on the seftlernent date.

As at June 30, 2022

Exposed to interest rate risk
- More than Not ]
. ective three expose
Particular interest rate | Upto three months More than | 4o Interest Total
months and upto one year | rate risk
one year
% Rupees In "000
On-balance sheet financial instruments
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Investments - Government securities (Treasury bills) 14.86-15 3,4M - - - 331,471
Financial assets at amortized cost
Bank halances 7.75 - 11.26 681,421 - - 10 681,431
Prafit receivable on bank deposits and commercial paper - - - 8,451 8,451
Deposits - - - 100 100
Investment in commercial papers 264,224 - - - 264,224
945,645 - - 8,561 954,206
Sub total 1,277,116 - - 8,561 1,285,677
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As at June 30, 2022

Exposed to interast rate risk

- More than Not ’
ective three expose
Particular interest rate |Uptothree) o | More than [ 5 interest Total
months and upto one year | raterisk
one year
{Rupees in '000)
Financial [iabilities at amortised cost
Payable to AKD Investment Management Limited - 4442 1,442
Management Company B " " A4
Payable to the Central Depository Company of Pakistan 68 68
Limited - Trustee i ) )
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - - - 397 397
Dividend Payable - - - 1,868 1,868
Sub total - - - 3,775 3,775
On-balance sheet gap 1,277,116 - - 4,786 1,281,802
Total Interest rate sensitivity gap 1,277,116 - - 4,786
As at June 30, 2021
Exposed to interest rate risk
Effecii More than Noetd )
. eclive three 2Xpos Q
Particular interest rate | Ypto three months More than | jnterest Total
months and upto oneyear | rate risk
one year
% {Rupeas in '000)
On-balance sheet financial instruments
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Investments - Govarnment securities (Treasury bills) 7.15-8.07 113,873 308,119 - - 421,992
Financial assets at amortised cost
Bank balances 5-6.5 2,489 - - 10 2,499
Profit receivable on bank deposits and commercial paper - - - 85 85
Deposit 2,489 - - 100 100
2,489 - - 195 2,684
Sub total 116,362 308,119 - 195 424 676
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Payable to AKD Investment Management Limited - _ } _ 88d 889
Management Company
Payable to the Central Depository Company of Pakistan ) 28 28
Limited - Trustee ) )
Accrued expenses and other fiabilities - - - 390 3g0
Sub total ) } i 1,307 1,307
On-balance sheet gap 116,362 308,119 - (1.112) 423,369
Total interest rats sensitivity gap 116,362 308,119 - (1.112)

ALY
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As at June 3, 2022

Qver one to Over Over one
Within one three to
three to five Total
Month twelve
months years
months
{Rupees in '000)
Financial liabilities
Payable to AKD Investment Management Limited -
Management Company 1,442 - - - 1,442
Payable to Central Depository Company
of Pakistan Limited - Trustee 68 - - - 68
Accrued expenses and cther liabilities 397 - - - 397
Dividend Payable 1,868 - - - 1,868
1,907 - - - 1,907
As at June 30, 2021
. Over three
Withinone  Overoneto Cver one to
ta twelve Total
Month three months five years
months
{Rupees in '000)
Financial hiabilities
Payable to AKD Investment Management Limited -
Management Company 889 - - - 889
Payable to Central Depository Company
of Pakistan Limited - Trustee 28 - - - 28
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 390 - - - 390
1,307 - - - 1,307

UNIT HOLDERS' FUND (UHF} RISK MANAGEMENT

The unit holders’ fund is represented by the net assets attributabte to unif holders / redeemable units. The amaunt of net
assets attributable to unit holders can change significantly on a daily basis as the Fund is subject to daily issuance and
redemptions at the discretion of unit holders. These unit holders of the Fund are entitfed to distributions and to payment of
a propertionate share based on the Fund's net asset value per unit on the redemption date. The relevant movements are
shown on the statement of movement in unit holders' fund.

The Fund's objective when managing unit holders' fund is to safeguard the Fund's ability to continue as a going concem in
order to provide returns for the benefits of the unit holders to maintain a strong base of assets to support the development
of the investment activities of the Fund and to meet unexpected losses or opportunities. As required under the NBFC
Regulations, every open end scheme shall maintain minimum fund size {i.e. net assets of the Fund) of Rs. 100 million at all
times during the life of scheme, In order to comply with the requirement and to maintain or adjust the Unit Holders' Fund,
the Fund's policy is to perform the following:

- Monitar the !evel of daily issuance and redemptions relative to the liquid assets and adjust the amount of distributions
the Fund pays to the unit holders;

- Redeem and issue units in accordance with the constitutive documents of the Fund. This includes the Fund's ability to
restrict redemptions; and

- The Fund Manager / Investment Committee members and the Chief Executive Officer of the Managernent Company
critically track the movement of ‘Assets under Management'. The Board of Directors of the Management Company is
updated regarding key performance indicators, e.g., yield and movement of NAV and total Fund size at the end of
each quarter.

The Fund has maintained and complied with the requirements of minimum fund size during the current year.
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FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

IFRS 13 - 'Fair Value Measurement' establishes a single source of guidance under IFRS for all fair value measurements
and disclosures about fair value measurement where such measurements are required as permitted by other IFRSs. It
defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date (i.e. an exit price).

Financial assets which are tradable in an open market are revalued at the market prices prevailing on the close of trading
i.e. period end date. The estimated fair value of ajl other financial assets and financial liabilities is considered not
significantly different from book value as these are short term in nature.

The following table shows financiai instruments recognised at fair value based on:

Level 1:

Level 2:

Level 3:

ASSETS

quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

those involving inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset ar liability,
either directly (as prices) or indirectly {derived from prices); and

those with inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Government securities - Market treasury bills

ASSETS

Government securities - Market treasury bitls

As at June 30, 2022
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

----------------- {Rupees in '000) --——-—emeemmeemee

- 331,471 - 331,471

As at June 30, 2021
Level 1 Levet 2 Level 3 Total
e {Rupees in '000) ~——-—mm—mmmomeeeemm

- 421,092 - 421,892

There were no transfers between various levels of fair value hierarchy during the year

PARTICULARS OF THE INVESTMENT COMMITTEE AND THE FUND MANAGER

Details of members of the lnvestmant Commitiee of the Fund are as follows:

S.no

6

Name Designation

Mr. Imran Motiwala Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Muhammad Yagoob Chief Operating Officer
and Company

Ms. Anum Dhedhi Chief Investment Office
Mr. Sheikh Usman Haroon Risk Manager

Mr. Danish Aslam Senior Fund Manager

Mr, Ali Abbas Head of Research

. Experience
Qualification in years

B.Sc. (Marketing) 29
MBA (Finance), CFA Charterholder 18
B.Sc¢. (Financial Economics) 1
ACCA, CFA Level 1ll Passed 8
BS (Accounting & Finance), CFA Level | 4
Passed

MBA (Finance), CFA Charterholder 3]

Mr. Danish Aslam is the Manager of the Fund. He is also managing AKD Islamic
Income Fund and AKD Aggressive Income Fund.

Vi




25.

26,

7.

271

27.2

28.

As at June 30, 2022

PATTERN OF UNIT HOLDING Number of  Number of units % of total
unit holders held units
Individuals 365 20,466,137 81.56
Retirement Funds 6 3,652,399 14.56
Public Limited Companies 1 291,362 1.16
Othess g 683,646 272
381 25,093,544 100
As at June 30, 2021
Number of  Numberof units .
unit holders held % of total units
Individuals 290 4,262,903 91.52
Retirement Funds 7 3,697,268 5.80
Public Limited Companies 1 291,362 2.76
Others 7 15,855 0.12
Director 1 147 0.00
306 8,267,235 100

ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY

During the year 89th, 90th, 91st and 92nd board meetings were held on September 29, 2021, October 28, 2021, February
25, 2022 and April 27, 2022 respectively. Information in respect of attendance by Directors in these meetings is given
below :

S N N f D_ Nl.lmber Of meetil"lgs Meeting not
e ame of Director Held Attended Leave granted attended
1 Mr. Abdul Karim 4 4 - -
2 Mr. Imran Motiwala 4 4 - -
3  Ms. Anum Dhedhi 4 4 - -
4  Mr. Saim Mustafa Zuberi 4 4 - -
5 Mr. Ali Wahab Siddiqui 4 4 - -
6 Mr. Hasan Ahmed 4 4 - -
7 Ms, Aysha Ahmed 4 4 - -

GENERAL

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees unless otherwise specified.
Comparative figures have been reclassified where necessary for better presentation and comparison.
DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorised for issue on 2 8 SEP 2022 by the Board of Directors of the
Management Company.

For AKD Investment Management Limited
{Management Company)

—
Chief Financial Officer

Chi cutive Officer




AKD CASH FUND
PERFORMANCE TABLE

Total net assets value (Rs '000)*
Net assets value per unit - (Rs)*
Selling price as at June 30 (Rs)*
Repurchase price as at June 30 (Rs)*

Highest selling price (Rs)
Lowest selling price (Rs)

Highest repurchase price (Rs)
Lowest repurchase price (Rs)

Return of the Fund
- capital growth (Rs '000)
- income distribution (including refund of capital) (Rs '000)*

Distribution per unit

Interim

- Gross (2022: Announced on June 30, 2022) (Rs)
- Gross (2021: Announced on June 30, 2021) (Rs)
- Gross (2020: Announced on June 30, 2020) (Rs)
Final

Average Annual Return
- Last one year

- Last two years

- Last three years

Weighted Average Portfolio Duration

1,273,399
50.7461
50.7461
50.7461

55.3810
50.6374

55.3810
50.6374

854,840

111,249

4.75

9.64

8.00
9.39

40

* Final distributions for the period made subsequent to the year end have been adjusted against the closing NAVs.

Note: The portfolio composition of the fund has been disclosed in note 6 to the financial statements.

Past performance is not necessarily indicative of future performance and that unit prices and investment returns may

go down, as well as up.

418,559
50.6287
50.6287
50.6287

53.7609
50.5928

53.7609
50.5928

(114,661)
25,275

6.38
9.27
8.81

72

200 |
533,220
50.5830
50.5830
50.5830

56.6225
50.5028

56.6225
50.5028

430,819

58,142

6.08

12.24

10.05
8.26

48
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Head Oifice:
216-217, Continental Trade Centre, Block-3, Clifton, Karachi-74000
UAN:92-21-111 AKDIML (111-253-465) | Fax: 92-21-35303125

Gulshan-e-lgbal Branch: Abbottabad Branch: Lahore Branch:
Bungalow No. FL-3/12, Office No. 1 & 2, 2nd Floor, Zaman Plaza, Plaza # 250, 2nd Floor,Phase IV,
Ground Flogr Block No. 5, KDA, Mear Complex Hospital, Block-FF, D.H.A. Lahore Cantl.
Scheme No. 24, Guishan-g-lgbal, Karachi. Main Mansehra Road, Abbottabad. Contact # 0333-0342762-4
Contact # 92-21-34823003-7 Comact # 099-2381431-2

E-mail - infoiE@akdinvestment.com
Website : www.akdinvestment.com
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